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25. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and RAMON FOSECA, with the assistance of
officers and employees of Universal MoneyFast, would cash checks made payable to First Choice,
Bibb Services, Comprehensive Medical, Best Care, Fast Cure, and Best Cure.

26. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and RAMON FONSECA, with the assistance of
MONIKA BLACIO and others acting on behalf of Rapid Trans Solutions, would cash checks
made payable to First Choice.

27. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECO, and their coconspirators
would distribute, and cause the distribution of, the cash proceeds to themselves and others.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

COUNTS 3-10

Health Care Fraud
(18 U.S.C. § 1347)

1. Paragraphs 1 through 3, 9 through 15, and 22 through 38 of the General
Allegations section of this Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.

2. From at least as early as September 2007, and continuing fhrough in or around
May 2009, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the

defendants,

MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and
RAMON FONSECA,

in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and services, did
knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, a scheme and artifice to defraud a health
care benefit program affecting commerce, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section

24(b), that is, Medicare, and to obtain, by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,
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representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and under the custody and control
of, Medicare, that is, the defendants submitted and caused the submission of false and fraudulent
claims to Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans for the cost of injection treatments, intravenous
infusion treatments, and other medical goods and services.

Purpose of the Scheme and Artifice

3. It was a purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendants to unlawfully enrich
themselves by, among other things: (a) submitting and causing the submission of false and
fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans; (b) concealing the submission of
false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans; (c) concealing the receipt
of the fraud proceeds; and (d) diverting the fraud proceeds for their personal use and benefit.

The Scheme and Artifice

The manner and means by which the defendants sought to accomplish the purpose of the
scheme and artifice included, among other things:

4. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, V.G. and their
accomlices agreed to open multiple medical clinics in Louisiana to defraud Medicare.

5. V.G., based on his understanding and agreement with MICHEL DE JESUS
HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA and others, relocated from Miami-Dade County to New Orleans
to incorporate and manage medical clinics.

6. V.G., based on his understanding and agreement with MICHEL DE JESUS
HUARTE and RAMON FONSECA, recruited S.G. and F.C. to serve as nominee or “straw”
owners of medical clinics in Louisiana, and to sign the necessary corporate records, bank records,

and business documents.

7. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, V.G. and S.G.
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incorporated or caused the incorporation of Fast Cure in Metairie, Louisiana.

8. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, V.G. and F.C.
incorporated or caused the incorporation of Best Cure in New Orleans, Louisiana.

9. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, M.B., and R.D. agreed to
open medical clinics in North Carolina and South Carolina to defraud Medicare.

10. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE directed R.D. to recruit a nominee or “straw”
owner to sign the necessary corporate records, bank records, and other business documents for the
medical clinics to be opened in North Carolina and South Carolina.

1. R.D., acting at the direction of MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, recruited 0.Q.,
who agreed to serve as a nominee or “straw” owner of the medical clinics in North Carolina and
South Carolina.

12. R.D,, M.B. and O.Q., acting at the direction of MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE,
travelled to South Carolina to incorporate Magestic Service, and to North Carolina to incorporate
Ziallet Services.

13.  R.D., M.B. and O.Q., acting at the direction of MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE,
travelled to South Carolina and North Carolina to open multiple corporate bank accounts and to
rent multiple mailboxes for Magestic Service and Ziallet Services, respectively.

14.  MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
agreed to open medical clinics in Georgia to defraud the Medicare program.

15. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
recruited J.G. to serve as serve as the nominee or “straw” owner of First Choice and Bibb Services
in Georgia, and to sign the necessary corporate records, bank records, and other business

documents for both companies.
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16. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
recruited J.C. to serve as the nominee or “straw” owner of Comprehensive Medical and Best Care
in Georgia, and to sign the necessary corporate records, bank records, and other business
documents for both companies.

17. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
purchased the names and other personal identifying information of numerous Medicare
beneficiaries in Louisiana, Georgia, North Carolina and South Carolina, thereby facilitating the
submission of false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans.

18.  MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
misappropriated the names and NPIs of multiple physicians, thereby facilitating the submission of
false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans.

19.  MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their accomplices
submitted and caused the submission of false and fraudulent claims to Medicare and to various
Medicare Advantage plans seeking reimbursement for injection treatments, intravenous infusion
treatments, and other medical items and services which were neither ordered by a physician nor
provided to any beneficiary as claimed.

20. V.G, based on his understanding and agreement with MICHEL DE JESUS
HUARTE and RAMON FONSECA, would retrieve checks that were delivered to Fast Cure and
Best Cure by Medicare Advantage plans.

21.  V.G. would deliver to MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and RAMON FONSECA
in Miami, the checks made payable to Fast Cure and Best Cure by Medicare Advantage plans.

22. R.D., MB.,, and 0.Q., acting upon instructions from MICHEL DE JESUS

HUARTE, travelled from Miami to North Carolina and South Carolina on multiple occasions to
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retrieve checks that were delivered to the rented mailboxes of Magestic Service and Ziallet
Services by Medicare Advantage plans. R.D., M.B. and O.Q. would then deposit such checks into
the corporate bank accounts for Magestic Service and Ziallet Services.

23.  0.Q., acting upon instructions from M.B. and R.D., would pre-sign blank checks to
be drawn on the bank accounts of Magestic Service and Ziallet Services.

24.  MB. and R.D. would deliver to MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE the blank, pre-
signed corporate checks drawn upon the bank accounts of Magestic Service and Ziallet Services.

25. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and RAMON FOSECA, with the assistance of
officers and employees of Universal MoneyFast, would cash checks made payable to First Choice,
Bibb Services, Comprehensive Medical, Best Care, Fast Cure, and Best Cure.

26. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and RAMON FONSECA, with the assistance of
M.B. and others acting on behalf of Rapid Trans Solutions, would cash checks made payable to
First Choice.

27. MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECO, and their accomplices
would distribute, and cause the distribution of, the cash proceeds to themselves and others

Acts in Execution or Attempted Execution of the Scheme and Artifice

28.  On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in Miami-Dade County, in
the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants, in connection with the delivery of
and payment for health care benefits, items, and services, did knowingly and willfully execute, and
attempt to execute, the above-described scheme and artifice to defraud a health care benefit
program affecting commerce, that is, Medicare, and to obtain, by means of materially false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and under the

custody and control of, said health care benefit program:
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Approx. | Medicare | Medical Clinic - Claim Number Item Claimed Claimed
A Claim | Advantage g or Identifier Amount
S | Dateor Plan or 2
2 | Service | Provider g
Date 3
3 | 09/09/08 Humana Comprehensive S.S. 370821705 Injection Infliximab $6,618
Medical 10MG
4 | 09/17/08 Humana Best Care M.S. 372487752 Injection Infliximab $4,964
10MG
5 10/02/08 | Coventry Best Cure AA. 12782293 Injection, $4,671
Octreotide, Depot
Form For
Intramuscular
Injection, 1 MG
6 | 10/04/08 | Coventry Fast Cure S.D. 12751280 Injection, $1,142
Cidofovir, 375 MG
7 | 10/21/08 Aetna Bibb Services | W.W. | 081021E2047100 { Corticoptropin Up $7,050
to 40u/Imx
8 | 11/10/08 | Humana First Choice S.G. 383988350 Injection $7,052
Corticotropin Up to
40 Units
9 | 11/25/08 | Wellpoint | Magestic Group | T.W. 090842092 Inj Octreotide $3,635
Depot Form IM Inj
1
10 | 03/23/09 | Healthnet | Ziallet Services S.B. | E099096247H000 Rituxan, 100MG $7.810

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

Count 11
Money Laundering Conspiracy
(18 U.S.C. § 1956(h))

Beginning at least as early as May 2008, and continuing through in or around May 2009, in

Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE,
RAMON FONSECA,
VICENTE GONZALEZ,
ALYD DAZZA, and
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MONIKA BLACIO,

did knowingly combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with others known and unknown to the
Grand Jury to commit an offense against the United States in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1957, that is, did knowingly engage and attempt to engage in a monetary
transaction affecting interstate and foreign commerce, such transaction involving criminally
derived property of a value greater than $10,000, and such property having been derived from
specified unlawful activity

It is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is health care fraud, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 1349.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).

COUNTS 12-16

Money Laundering
(18 U.S.C. § 1957)

On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in Miami-Dade County, in the
Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and
RAMON FONSECA,

did knowingly engage and attempt to engage in the identified monetary transactions affecting
interstate commerce, such transactions involving criminally derived property of a value greater

than $10,000, and such property having been derived from specified unlawful activity:

Count | Approx. Date of Description of Monetary Transaction
Monetary
Transaction
12 11/21/2008 The deposit of Best Cure check number 1174, made payable to In

Excess LLC, in the approximate amount of $16,933, into the
corporate bank account of Universal Money Fast, Peoples Credit
Union account number xxxxxx7000.

24



‘Case 1:09-cr-20523-PAS  Document 40  Entered on FLSD Docket 06/19/2009 Page 25 of 41

Count | Approx. Date of Description of Monetary Transaction
Monetary
Transaction
13 11/26/2008 The deposit of Best Cure check number 1172, made payable to

Elusive Quality LLC, in the approximate amount of $25,918, into
the corporate bank account of Universal Money Fast, Peoples
Credit Union account number xxxxxx7000.

14 11/28/2008 The deposit of Best Cure check number 1171, made payable to
High Speed Access Co., in the approximate amount of $15,471,
into the corporate bank account of Universal Money Fast, Peoples
Credit Union account number xxxxxx7000.

15 12/12/2008 The deposit of Fast Cure check number 1044, made payable to
Strong Hope Company LLC, in the approximate amount of
$14,751, into the corporate bank account of Universal Money Fast,
Peoples Credit Union account number xxxxxx7000.

16 02/06/2009 The deposit of First Choice check number 1024, made payable to
Strong Hope Company LLC, in the approximate amount of
$26,351, into the corporate bank account of Rapid Trans Solutions,
Peoples Credit Union account number xxxxxx7429.

It is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is health care fraud, in violation of
Title 18, United Stated Code, Sections 1349 and 1347.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1957 and 2.
COUNTS 17-20

AGGRAVATED IDENTITY THEFT
(18.S.C. § 1028A)

On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in Miami-Dade County, in the

Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere,

MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE and
RAMON FONSECA,

during and in relation to a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347 (health

care fraud), knowingly transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful authority, means of
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identification of another person, that is, a physician’s UPIN, in that they submitted claims to
Medicare for approximately the identified dollar amounts, and represented that, on or about the
identified dates of service, the identified medical clinics had provided the identified injection
treatments, intravenous infusion treatments, and other medical goods and services to Medicare

beneficiaries pursuant to the identified physician’s orders or prescriptions:

Approx. | Medical m | UPIN | Claim Number | Purported Item Claimed Claimed
Q Claim Clinic % (Last 3 Service Date Amount
E Date ¢ | Digits)
=

17 | 07/10/08 Bibb K.C. 382 1808192016682 05/02/08 Cytomegalovirus $1,940
Services imm IV /vial

18 | 07/10/08 Bibb K.C. 382 1108191673840 04/28/08 Corticotropin $2,400
Services injection

19 | 07/28/08 First K.C. 382 1108210780440 05/03/08 Octreotide $4,740
Choice Injection, depot

20 | 07/28/08 First K.C. 382 1108210780400 05/03/08 Injection therapy $5,000
Choice of veins

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028A and 2.

FORFEITURE
(18 U.S.C. § 982)

1. The allegations contained in this Indictment are realleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States
of America of certain property in which the defendants, MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE,
RAMON FONSECA, VICENTE GONZALEZ, ALYD DAZZA, MONIKA BLACIO,

RICCO DAZZA, ORLIN TAMAYO QUINONEZ, and JUAN CARRALERO have an interest
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pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7) and Section
982(a)(1).

2. Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7), upon conviction of
MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, VICENTE GONZALEZ, MONIKA
BLACIO, RICCO DAZZA, ORLIN TAMAYO QUINONEZ, and JUAN CARRALERO for
the offenses charged in Counts 1 through 10 of this Indictment, the defendants shall forfeit to the
United States any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly,
from gross proceeds traceable to the commission of the offense(s).

3. Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1), upon conviction of
MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, VICENTE GONZALEZ, ALYD
DAZZA, and MONIKA BLACIO for the offenses charged in Counts 11 through 16 of this
Indictment, the defendants shall forfeit to the United States any property, real or personal,
involved in such offenses, or any property traceable to such property.

4, The property subject to forfeiture includes but is not limited to:

(a) Gross proceeds of the fraud in the amount of at least $24,185,093;

(b) Funds involved in or traceable to the money laundering in the amount of
$99,424;

©) Peoples Credit Union account number 0000897000 controlled by or on
behalf of Universal MoneyFast, Inc. by defendant, ALYD DAZZA,

(d Wachovia Bank account number 2000034262236 controlled by or on behalf
of Universal MoneyFast, Inc. by defendant, ALYD DAZZA,;

(e) Peoples Credit Union account number 0000897429 controlled by or on

behalf of Rapid Trans Solutions, Inc. by defendant, MONIKA BLACIO;
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® SunTrust bank account number 1000074329516 controlled by or on behalf
of Ziallet Services Inc. by defendants ORLIN TAMAYO QUINONEZ,
MONIKA BLACIO, and ALYD DAZZA;

(2) Fifth Third Bank account numbers 7470334595 and 7470334579 controlled
by or on behalf of Ziallet Services Inc. by defendants ORLIN TAMAYO
QUINONEZ, MONIKA BLACIO, and ALYD DAZZA;

(h) BB&T Bank account numbers 0005103855057 and 0005103855049
controlled by or on behalf of Ziallet Services Inc. by defendants ORLIN
TAMAYO QUINONEZ, MONIKA BLACIO, and ALYD DAZZA;

@) Wachovia Bank account number 2000037144908 controlled by or on behalf
of Magestic Group Service, Inc, by Defendants ORLIN TAMAYO
QUINONEZ, MONIKA BLACIO, and ALYD DAZZA;

()] Carolina First Bank account numbers 7101344415 and 7101950515
controlled by or on behalf of Magestic Group Service, Inc., by Defendants
ORLIN TAMAYO QUINONEZ, MONIKA BLACIO, and ALYD
DAZZA,

k) The Palmetto Bank account numbers 051137585 and 051137593 controlled
by or on behalf of Magestic Group Service, Inc., by Defendants ORLIN
TAMAYO QUINONEZ, MONIKA BLACIQO, and ALYD DAZZA;

M Bank of America account number 3340 0322 8574 controlled by or on
behalf of Bibb Group Service, Inc., by Defendants MICHEL DE JESUS

HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their coconspirators.
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(m)  Wachovia Bank account number 2000036997838 controlled by or on behalf
of First Choice Group Services, Inc., by Defendants MICHEL DE JESUS
HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their coconspirators; and

(n) Bank of America account number 003348108963 controlled by or on behalf
of Comprehensive Medical Care Services, Inc. by Defendants MICHEL
DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, and their coconspirators.

5. If the property described above as being subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act
or omission of MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, VICENTE
GONZALEZ, ALYD DAZZA, MONIKA BLACIO, RICCO DAZZA, ORLIN TAMAYO
QUINONEZ, and JUAN CARRALERO

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to or deposited with a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided
without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), as
made applicable through Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b)(1), to seek forfeiture of any
other property of MICHEL DE JESUS HUARTE, RAMON FONSECA, VICENTE
GONZALEZ, ALYD DAZZA, MONIKA BLACIO, RICCO DAZZA, ORLIN TAMAYO

QUINONEZ, and JUAN CARRALERO, up to the value of the above forfeitable property.
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982 and the procedures set forth at
Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as made applicable through Title 18, United States
Code, Section 982(b)(1).

A TRUE BILL

,W(/AQN

JEF Y H. SLOMAN
ING UNITED STAT, S AT

WM Koo

RYANK. STUMPHAUZ]?R
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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